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MARKETING ALTERNATIVES FOR ALASKA
NORTH SLOPE NATURAL GAS

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 1983

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ENERGY REGULATION,
CoMmMITTEE ON ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 2 p.m., in room
SD-366, Dirksen Office Building, Hon. Frank H. Murkowski, pre-
siding.

Present: Senator Murkowski.

Also present: Howard Useem, professional staff member, and
Elizabeth Moler, counsel for the minority.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. FRANK H. MURKOWSKI, A U.S.
SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA

‘Senator MurkowskKi. I call the Subcommittee on Energy Regula-
tion of the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources to order. 1
apologize that some of the witnesses have not been able to be
seated. We will make an effort to accommodate them by urging
your cooperation. If you get tired of sitting or bored or anything
else, I'm sure that you would find your seat readily available by
someone else. We will do our best to accommodate you. There
might be some room on the sides. I leave that to the discretion of
the officer in the back. Or if we could bring in any more chairs it
would be all right with me.

I am told that the usual time allotted actually pertains in this
case. With that, I will get into my formal remarks.

Today the subcommittee will explore alternatives to marketing
of Alaska’s abundant supplies of natural gas. These are proven re-
serves of approximately 26 trillion cubic feet of gas and that is rec-
ognized primarily in the Prudhoe Bay area, in addition to the 109
trillion cubic feet of undiscovered but recoverable gas which is esti-
mated to exist in Arctic Alaska.

You will recall in 1977, the President and Congress approved the
construction of a 4,800-mile pipeline system, the Alaska Natural
Gas Transportation System or ANGTS as it became known, to
move the gas from Alaska to the lower 48 States. This system was
intended to be completed by 1983. ,

Of course 1983 is with us today and Canadian gas is the only gas
flowing through the completed portions of the pipeline. Alaska gas,
on the other hand, is'being reinjected into the ground at the rate of
2 billion cubic feet per day.

)
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Several major events have occurred since Congress last looked at
this issue in 1981. On November 11, just a few days ago, President
Reagan and Prime Minister Nakasone of Japan issued a joint com-
munique emphasizing the importance of United States-Japanese co-
operation in the development of Alaskan gas and other energy re-
sources. This communique recognizes that the market for Alaska’s
gas may not lie solely in the lower 48, but also in the Pacific rim.
The possibilities for the export of Alaska’s natural gas resources
are largely unexplored. I hope this hearing may help lay the foun-
dation for determining where the most likely markets for Alaska’s
gas may be. A

Over the past year, we have seen other major developments,
namely the acquisition of Northwest Energy, the leader of the
ANGTS consortium, by the Williams Co.

We have also seen the creation of a new company with a new
idea. This company, the Yukon-Pacific Corp., envisions the con-
struction of a pipeline to carry North Slope gas to the south coast
of Alaska where it would be converted to liquified natural gas
(LNG) and shipped to foreign markets in the Pacific Rim.

As a consequence of these developments, it is appropriate that
Congress again examine the issue of Alaska gas. We must not
ignore the issue, because the continued inability to move Arctic
Alaska gas will inevitably hinder exploration and production ef-
forts on Alaska’s North Slope, an area we currently depend on for
20 percent of our domestically produced oil. Further, we must real-
ize that exploration efforts on Alaska’s North Slope focus on oil
and not gas, because there is no pipeline in place, obviously, to
move the gas. One can only speculate on what Alaska’s gas re-
serves might be.

As a part of the discussions we must also recognize the Canadi-
ans also want to market their gas in the Pacific rim. Their primary
competition could come from Alaska. The best way to eliminate
Alaska competition for those markets, it would seem, would be for
the Canadians to point to so-called commitments and obligations to
proceed with the construction, and argue that Alaska gas can only
be moved through a trans-Canadian pipeline to U.S. markets. Fur-
ther, Canada may wish to continue marketing gas that costs less
than that of Alaska gas for the user.

On several occasions we have committed ourselves to the con-
struction of ANGTS provided of course that it could be financed
privately. If we assume for a moment that the market concerned
with ANGTS cannot be privately financed given the current
market conditions, then what commitment exists? I've asked you
members of the panel to possibly respond. And if the private sector
precluded from pursuing any other alternatives.

4 These are among the broader questions that this hearing will ad-
ress.

However, because of a lengthy list of witnesses that wil be heard
from in a relatively short time, I would ask that each of you as wit-
nesses summarize your remarks as much as possible with the as-
surance that your written testimony will be included in the record
in full as if read. Initially I'm going to limit each participant on
each panel to approximately 5 minutes, and I'll fudge a couple of
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minutes on that, about 7 minutes; I will request that you summa-
rize your remarks.

With that, gentlemen, I would introduce to you the first panel,
and we are pleased to see before us again our good friend Hon.
John T. Rhett, Federal Inspector, Office of the Federal Inspector,
Alaska Natural Gas Transportation System. It’s nice to have you
with us again. And we have the Hon. Jan Mares, Assistant Secre-
tary, Fossil Fuels, Department of Energy. We welcome you. And
the last gentleman, Mr. E. Allan Wendt, Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary for Economic Affairs, Department of State. We welcome you,
Mr. Wendt to the committee, and would request that you present
your testimony in whatever order you individually or collectively
have decided.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN T. RHETT, FEDERAL INSPECTOR,
OFFICE OF THE FEDERAL INSPECTOR, ALASKA NATURAL GAS
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

Mr. RHETT. Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and members of the
committee. It is a pleasure to be here today. I would like to give a
brief statement of the status of the Alaska Natural Gas Transpor-
tation System project from a technical and regulatory viewpoint to
help provide background for today’s hearing. A detailed history
from our viewpoint is being provided for the record. I am also sub-
mitting a copy of our September 30, 1983, “Quarterly Report to
Congress”’ which provides an excellent status report on the project.

Approximately $3.2 billion has been spent by the project sponsors
and one-third of the mileage of the total system is now in place.
About $2.3 billion of this was for the phase I portion, or prebuild,
that is presently bringing Canadian gas to the United States. It
was built on time and under budget, and, I might add, in an out-
standing manner. The sponsors have spent approximately $700 mil-
lion on regulatory and engineering matters, to include R&D, on the
Alaskan leg to date. Our Canadian counterparts have spent over
$200 million on phase II activities.

On the Alaskan leg, the bulk of the engineering needed to pro-
ceed with final design has been accomplished. This includes the
necessary research work on the extremely difficult engineering
problem of frost heave. We have approved 28 of the 31 sections of
design criteria, which is the foundation for the final design, and we
should be approving the remaining three sections during 1984. In
addition, the sponsors have been and will be actively pursuing opti-
mization studies to reduce costs and increase efficiency. The latest
of these reduced the cost of the conditioning plant by $1 billion and
cut 1 year off its construction time.

The bulk of the environmental and construction procedure plans
will be completed in 1984, with the exception of a few that should
be deferred until remobilization. The engineering to date, in my
opinion, has been well done and will considerably reduce the risk
of the unknowns that could lead to cost overruns during construc-
tion. All of these technical plans and criteria have been jointly re-
viewed and approved by the OFI and the State of Alaska. There
has been excellent cooperation between the State and the Federal
Government on all facets of the project.
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All the basic regulatory actions have been completed except the
final FERC certification, which requires gas contracts, the financ-
ing plan and marketability studies, and the State of Alaska right-
of-way grant. This includes all major permits, the Federal right-of-
way grant, and legislative action on the waiver package. The spon-
sors have spent approximately $10 million this year and have a
proposed budget of $5 million for 1984 to complete the engineering
and obtain our approval of the frost heave methodology.

The project engineering and the regulatory process have ad-
vanced to the point where, when the financing plan is obtained, the
final design and construction can proceed expeditiously.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Rhett follows:]



STATEMENT OF JOHN T. RHETT
FEDERAL INSPECTOR
OFFICE OF THE FEDERAL INSPECTOR
FOR THE ALASKA NATURAL GAS TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

- Before the
Subcommittee on Energy Regulation

Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee
November 16, 1983

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, I appreciate the opportunity
to appear before you today to discuss the Alaska Natural Gas Transportation
system (ANGTS) and the role the Office of the Federal Inspector (OFI} has had
in overseeing this extraordinary project to date.

Let me begin by giving you a short history of the project itself and
the origins of the OFI. I will then give you a status report on the project
from a technical, and regulatory viewpoint.

The ANGTS project was - conceived following discovery, in 1968, of a huge
reservoir of oil and natural gas at Prudhoe Bay on the North Slope of Alaska.
The proven reserves of 9.6 barrels of oil and 26 trillion cubic feet of gas
stimulated interest in moving the vast supplies to markets in the lower 48
States. The o0il eventually began flowing, in June 1977, through the Trans-
Alaskan Pipeline System (TAPS), which was built to transport the oil from
the North Slope to the port of Valdez where the oil could be shipped by tanker.
The natural gas is currently being reinjected to maintain field pressure .
and maximize oil recovery.

Domestic gas shortages, coupled ‘.ith sharp o0il price increases in the
mid-1970s, encouraged plans for an Alaskan gas pipeline syctem. Between
1974 and 1976 three separate project groups applied to the Federal Power Com-
mission (FPC) for certification to transport Alaskan gas. The Arctic Gas
consortium proposed to build a pipeline east from Prudhce Bay across the
Arctic National Wildlife Range, down Canada's Mackenzie River Valley to Alberta
where separate legs would deliver the gas to the U.S. Midwest and West Coast.
The E1 Paso group wanted to construct a gas Tine along the oil Tine corridor
to the Gulf of Alaska, where the gas would be liquified and shipped to Cali-
fornia. Finally, the Alcan Pipeline Company submitted what was to become the
approved system. .

Because the sizeable Prudhoe reserves were viewed as critical to the
Nation's total enerqy program, Congress passed the Alaska Natural Gas Trans-
portation Act {ANGTA) of 1976, while the FPC was holding hearings on the three
proposals. The ANGTA provided for the participation of the President and the
Congress in the selection process and for the means to expedite construction
and initial operation of the approved system. Pursuant to the requirements



of the ANGTA, President Carter selected the Alcan proposal, the 4,800-mile
joint U.S.- Canadian overland pipeline that could eventually deliver up to
2.4 billion cubic feet per day to markets in the Tower 48. The Alcan project
was found to be the most economically and environmentally acceptable proposal
by tre United States and Canada, whose National Energy Board had issued a
decision to that effect in June 1977.

As proposed by Alcan, the pipeline would be of varying diameters and
the first buried, chilled gas Tine ever built. The system route was based
on paralleling the TAPS Tine from Prudhoe to Delta dunction, just south-
east of Fairbanks. At Delta Junction the pipeline would turn southeast
and generally follow the Alaska Highway across the Yukon Territory, British
Columbia, and Alberta to James River Station. At James River, the system
would divide into two legs. The Western Leg would cross British Columbia
and then continue south through Idaho, Washington, and Oregon before termi-
nating near Antioch, California. The Eastern Leg would turn east to cress
Saskatchewan and the States of Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Minne-
sota, and Iowa, before terminating near Chicago, 11linois.

In 1977, completion of the entire system was targeted for January 1,
1983.

President Carter's message to Congress on the selection of the Alcan
proposal consisted of a decision and a report (Decision and Renort to
Congress on the Alaska Natural Gas Transportation System). The decision
‘designated the ATcan group as sSponsors; described the 4,800-mile route;
identified provisions of law requiring waiver; set forth the terms and
conditions for enforcement; and included text of the U.S.-Canadian agree-
ment on tariffs, cost controls and pipe procurement which had been approved
by the Senate in October 1977. The Congress approved the President's
selection on November 2, 1977.

The project was set up such that each Leg of the ANGTS would be designed,
financed, constructed, owned, and operated by a diffarent group of private
natural gas transmission companies. The Alaskan segment of the system was
sponsored by the Alaskan Northwest Natural Gas Transportation Company, a con-
sortium of 10 pipeline companies. Northwest Alaskan Pipeline Company (former-
1y Alcan) is the consortium's operating partner. At a later date, the North
STope gas producers would join this effort through a cooperative agreement to
share the engineering costs of the Alaskan Leg.

A consortium of five companies formed the Northern Border Pipeline
Company to construct the Eastern Leg, of which Northern Plains Natural
Gas Company was and continues to be the operating partner. Pacific Gas
Transmission Company and its parent company, Pacific Gas and Electric
Company, sponsored the Western Leg. The principal sponsor of the Canadian
portion was Foothills Pipe Lines Ltd.



In the late 1970's it became evident that Canada had a growing
exportable surplus of gas reserves in Alberta. As a result, the Alcan
plan was modified to be constructed in two stages. The first stage,
referred to as "prebuild" construction would entail building portions of
the Eastern and Western Legs to transport Albertan gas to the Tower 48.
With this prebuild system Albertan gas would begin flowing several years
pefore the North Slope gas came on 1ine, thus providing cash flow and
other immediate benefits to the participants and facilitating the financ-
ing and construction of the overall system.

The second stage of the system, known as Phase II construction, would
be the completion of the Alaskan, northern Canadian portions, and lower 48
segments necessary to deliver the Alaskan natural gas to the continental
United States. A gas conditioning plant, needed to remove impurities from
the gas prior to shipment through the pipeline was also scheduled to be
built during the second phase of construction. The conditioning plant was
originally not a legal component of the ANGTS project.

In December 1977, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
issued conditional certification to the project sponsors to build the ANGTS,
thereby enabling the companies to begin pipeline design and planning.

While design work was progressing in 1978, the FERC proposed, in May,
an incentive rate of return structure, as required by the President's
Decision, and the Congress adopted the President's preferred wellhead
pricing policy for Alaskan production in November. Under the National
. Gas Policy Act (NGPA), the wellhead prices of natural gas produced from
the Prudhoe Bay Unit system would be the equivalent of $1.45 per million
BTUs in 1977 escalated by inflation. The NGPA also allowed for "rolled-in"
pricing on Alaskan gas, a method by which comparatively high-priced Alaskan
gas could be mixed for sale with less expensive domestic gas. Due to the
Tengthy debate in Congress on the NGPA and other delays, the Northwest
Alaskan Pipeline Compary revised the schedule in 1978 from a system comple-
tion date of January 1, 1983 to November 1, 1934,

The first half of 1979 was marked by a series of regulatory filings
and actions to allow the pipeline sponsors to proceed with their planning
and to begin construction on schedule. In January, the Northern Border
filed for FERC approval to build the Eastern Leg prebuild segment at an
estimated cost of $1.4 billion. In April, the FERC issued a notice of
proposed rulemaking attaching values to each incentive rate of return
component and it also ordered expedited hearings on the prebuild portion
of the system.

In July 1979, the Office of the Federal Inspector for the Alaska
Natural Transportation System officially began operations. This new,
independent agency was created pursuant to the ANGTA, which authorized



the President to select a Federal Inspector to be responsible for coordi-
nating all Federal activities related to the pipeline project, and for
assuring timely, efficient, and environmentally sound construction. That
Congress specifically addressed the construction of an Alaskan gas pipeline
was generally interpreted as a reaction to the schedule delays and cost
overruns associated with the building of the TAPS. The problems experienced
by the private companies involved in TAPS were, unfortunately, exacerbated
by the lack of a clearly defined Federal role. The President's Decision
directed that a limited and temporary restructuring of governmental en-
forcement authority over the ANGTS be implemented through a reorganization
plan to vest such responsibilities with the OFI for the duration of the
ANGTS project. Through the enactment of Reorganization Plan Number 1 of
1979, the Federal Inspector was given authority to schedule and expedite
Federal®agencies' permits, to review and approve the design and final

cost estimate, and enforce all Federal permits and other authorizations.

As per Executiye Order No. 12142, the Reorganization Plan became effective
on July 1, 1979, to remain in effect until 1 year after initial operation
of the completed pipeline system.

Key regulatory actions occurred throughout the latter half of 1979
as the pipeline companies sponsoring the ANGTS continued with engineering
design and construction planning. In June 1979, the Department of the
Interior (DOI) conditionally authorized the Right-of-Way grant for con-
struction across Federal lands in Alaska. In August, the FERC approved
a 48-inch pipe size and 1260 psig pressure for the Alaskan segment, and
in September, issued its final, unappealable incentive rate of return and
tariff order. i

Despite the progress made toward satisfying regulatory requirements,
critical governmental actions, such as the determination of gas conditioning
plant ownership, were not resolved as quickly as had been expected. Further-
more, the Northwest Alaskan Pipeline Company was beginning to run into dif-
ficulties in sccuring the massive financing required to build the Alaskan
segment of the system. As a resuylt, in late 1979, the system completion
schedule was again revised; the November 1984 date was slipped one year to
November 1985.

In 1980 the focus of project activity was on clearing the way for the
start of construction. on the prebuild segments in Canada and the lower 48
States, the completion of which had been targeted for late 1981. In January,
the FERC issued the certificate for the Western Leg prebuild, subject to
rehearing, and later in the same month, upgraded the diameter for the Western
Leg pipe from 36 to 42 inches. On April 28, 1980, the FERC certified Eastern
Leg prebuild construction at an estimated cost of $1.2 billion. While the
United States had been issuing regulatory approvals to begin the prebuild,
the Canadian regulatory authorities would not approve their portion of the
prebuild system until assurances were received from the U.S. Government as
to the financeability and timely completion of the full system in the United
States. In July 1980, following written assurances from President Carter and




a Joint Resolution of Congress (S.J. 104), the Canadians approved their por-
tion of the prebuild system. Phase I construction began on the Canadian
section in August 1980 under the auspices of Foothills Pipe Lines Ltd.,

and the new Canadian regulatory agency, the Northern Pipeline Agency (NPA),
counterpart of the OFI.

As prebuild construction issues were being resolved, work on the regu-
1atory approvals, financing, and complex engineering needed for the Alaskan
segment continued throughout the latter half of 1980. In June, a cooperative
agreement was signed by the pipeline sponsors and the North Slope gas producers
for financing $500 million in design and engineering work. A statement of
intent to develop a financing plan for construction was also signed. 1In July,
Northwest Alaskan filed a partial application for a final certificate with
the FERC and applied to the DOI for a Right-of-Way permit. Shortly thereafter,
the Northwest Pipeline Corporation, in September 1980, began construction
on its Western Delivery System, 350 miles and 30-inch looping from Stanfield, .
Oregon to Burley, Idaho, to take additional Albertan gas from the ANGTS Western
Leg to markets in southern California. The Western Delivery System was re-
Tated to, but not part of, the ANGTS project; construction on it was com-
pleted in May 1981. ,

During 1980 the OFI increased its staff and opened field offices in
Alaska, California, and Nebraska to accommodate the expansion of project
activity and to prepare for on-site construction on the prebuild Tine. The
Agency was actively involved in coordinating permit issuances to expedite
construction planning and operations; reviewing the sponsors' cost estimates
in conjunction with the FERC; leading an arctic engineering board to assess
and resolve difficult construction issues, such as frost heave; analyzing
the Alaskan Right-of-Way application; monitoring field work on borehole
drillings along the pipeline corridor in Alaska; and providing technical
advice on major pipe and related procurements. The OF! also developed solid
working relationships with other Federal agencies, State and local groups,
and the Government of Canada so that all concerns were addressed early and
adequately, thereby keeping construction on an expedited track.

By the end of 1980 several key project milestones were met. On
November 29, 1980, D0l issued the Right-of-Way grant to the Northwest Alaskan
Pipeline Company, following Congressional approval on the 19th of November.
On December 8, 1980 the OFI issued a Notice to Proceed to the Pacific Gas
Transmission Company giving the company the green light to proceed with
Western Leg prebuild construction, which began that same day in Idaho. Two
days later, on December 10, 1980, a group of 28 U.S. and Canadian banks
signed agreements with the Northern Border Pipeline Company to provide a
loan of $1.055 billion for construction of the first phase of the Eastern
Leg. A consortium of nine U.S. commercial banks Ted by Bankers Trust Company
had already agreed to loan up to $160 million to Pacific Gas Transmission
Company for prebuild construction on the Western Leg; Pacific Gas financed
the remainder of the cost through the sale of common stock.
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Construction progressed smoothly on the Western Leg prebuild, which
was completed, aside from some minor compressor modifications and revege-
tation, at the end of September 1981. Gas from Canada began flowing
through the Yestern Leg in October 1981. The segment had been constructed
on schedule and under budget.

Construction on the Eastern Leq prebuild began in April 1981, after
a series of events had transpired to extend the target completion date
from late 1981 to the fall of 1982. A major reason for the delay was
a Tawsuit filed by the OFI and the FERC against the Public Service Com-
mission of the State of North Dakota, which had, on September 12, 1980,
denied the Eastern Leg sponsors a permit to cross the State within the
corridor previously approved by the Federal Government. On April 2, 1981
the U.S. District Court for North Dakota granted a motion for summary
judgment in favor of the OFI and the FERC, thereby allowing work to pro-
ceed on the segment. The Notice to Proceed enabling construction to begin
in May on si spreads in Montana, South Dakota, Minnesota, and Iowa was
issued by the OFI on April 18, 1981. By September 1981, 58% of the Eastern
Leg had been constructed.

Continued delays in obtaining financing for the Alaskan segment forced
another schedule slippage such that the full system completion date was
changed, in June 1981, from the winter of 1985-86 to 1986-87. Financing,
which had to be in place by mid-1981 to permit the sponsor to place orders

. for major materials and equipment to meet the 1985-86 target date, was still
eluding the sponsors. Because the risks involved in Alaskan construction
translated into significantly higher costs than those for the other, more
routine segments of the system, it was taking longer than anticipated to
secure financing for the Alaskan Leg. Compounding the problem was the pro-
vision of law prohibiting the producers of Alaskan gas (Exxon, Arco, and
Sohio) from having equity in the pipeline, effectively cutting off a major
source of capital investment.

In the meantime, the pipeline consortium and the major gas producers
reached agreement on the need for waivers of law that would permit equity
participation by the producers in financing the Alaskan Leg. Following
up on this agreement, John McMi11lian, Chairman of Northwest Alaskan
Pipeline Company, sent a letter to President Reagan in June 1981, requesting
consideration of a series of waivers of law to enable private financing.
Later, to facilitate private financing and expeditious project completion,
President Reagan invoked the provision of ANGTA which permitted waiving
laws found to be inhibiting progress on the ANGTS.

On October 15, 1981, President Reagan transmitted a waiver proposal
to Congress which contained the following key requests:

° to allow the producers to participate in the 6wnership of
the Alaskan segment, subject to FERC approval;



11

a

to include the as conditioning plant as part of the approved
transportation system to be certificated by the FERC, with-
out the Incentive Rate of Return requirements;

°

to remove the evidenciary hearing requirement from the FERC
process, leaving the use of such hearings to the FERC's dis-
cretion;

o

to assure that, once approved by the FERC, the charges for
actual operation and maintenance, actual current taxes, and
amounts to service debt (minimum bill) of the ANGTS tariff,
or recovery of those charges by the purchasers of Alaskan
gas, could not be changed by a subsequent FERC decision;

°

to permit the Canadian sponsors to recover the full cost-of-
service upon completion of the Canadian portion, but not
before the operation date determined by the FERC; and

°

tc permit the Alaskan sponsors to recover the minimum bill
charges upon completion of either the Alaskan Leg or the
gas conditioning plant, but not before a date certain to be
determined by the FERC during the final certificate pro-
cessing.

After the appropriate committees considered the waiver request, Congress
approved on December 10, 1981, via Joint Resolution, all the amendments pro-
posed by President Reagan. Approval of the waivers provided a regulatory
framework permitting the spensors to pursue private financing with greater
chance of success.

Most of the OFI's efforts in 1981 were geared to oversight of lower 48
construction, and review of engineering design and environmental plans
for the Alaskan Leg. Both the Omaha and San Francisco field offices estab-
lished smalier construction offices along the pipeline route to ensure
adequate coordination and oversight of the sponsors' activities. The thor-
oughness and responsiveness of the lower 48 field effort helped to assure
steady progress on prebuild construction, and speedy resolution of the few
problems that arose. As a result, the Western Leg was built on time and
slightly under budget.

The OFI engineering and environmental review programs assisted in
technical matters concerning the prebuild system, but the focus of their
efforts was on Alaskan Leg design review and related arctic construction
issues. These staffs worked closely with the sponsor in the development
of design criteria manuals and schedules for review of engineering and
environmental design packages. The results of the frost heave tests and
Atigun Pass borehole drillings were analyzed with the expectation of
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developing design strategies to minimize pipe displacement in the frozen
soil and structural problems in the narrow Atigun Pass. The environmental
staff completed its review of the sponsor's draft plans on clearing, resto-
ration, wetlands construction, and quality assurance, and continued its
review of the sponsor's studies on endangered species and fisheries.

In conjunction with the Alaskan design review effort, the OFI Alaska
field office staffs performed on-site monitoring of the sponsor's field
data gathering and survey programs. The Alaska offices monitored the
sponsor's drilling program, which covered 5,000 boreholes. As part of its
continuing responsibility to expedite permitting, the Alaska office also
coordinated the issuance of 40 Temporary Use Permits through the "one-
window" process.

The major project activities that occurred during the first half of
1982 included continued construction on the Eastern Leg prebuild, design of
the Alaskan Leg segment, and negotiations on financing.

Despite passage of the waivers, Alaskan Leg financing was still not
within immediate reach. Due to the short term excess world energy supplies,
depressed crude cil prices, and uncertainties in world financial markets,
the sponsors of the Alaskan Leg concluded in the spring of 1982 that they
would need more time to secure the financing than the 1986-87 completion
date allowed. On April 30, 1982, the sponsors revised the construction
schedule projecting a system completion date of 1989-90, based on obtaining
financing by mid-1984. Alaskan construction was postponed two years in the
hopes that general economic and specific energy market conditions would
?ett1e enough over time io allow financing of the gas pipeline project by

Not only did Northwest Alaskan revise its construction schedules, but
it also quickly and substantially reduced its staffing and contract support
shortly after the April 30th announcement. At that time, its staffing was
cut about 48%, down to 138 employees, and its contractor support by approxi-
mately 90%, down to a total of 50 employees. In spite of the reductions,
the sponsors continued to work on the design criteria packages for both
the pipeline and the gas conditioning plant.

At the end of August 1982, construction of the Eastern Leg prebuild
was essentially completed, aside from some minor restoration work. Gas from
Canada began flowing through the Eastern Leg on September 1, 1982. Despite
some welding problems the segment was completed under budget and on time.

With the completion of the Eastern Leg, 1,512 miles, or 32% of the
total ANGTS system had been constructed. Of that total, 983 miles were in
the U.S. and 529 in Canada. The prebuild system was now the longest, most
expensive gas pipeline ever built at one time in the Tower 48, That both
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prebuild segments were completed within budget and basically on schedule
js due in part to the expeditious oversight of the OFI field inspection
staff, along with the highly cooperative efforts of the sponsor companies
and other Federal agencies.

Because of the slippage in the construction schedule to a 1989-90
completion date, the OFI began to cut back its staffing and workload
plans to reflect the hiatus in major project activity between the first
and second phases of ANGTS construction. All along, the OFI had relied
upon the workload estimates and construction schedules provided by the
sponsors to develop its own planning. When Northwest Alaskan immediately
reduced its operations, the OFI quickly reassessed its resource needs
and began planning to cut the staff from a peak of approximately 159
total employees to 101 by the end of FY 1982. Employment reductions were
planned in phases to accommodate any possible sudden upturns in project
activity and to retain enough expertise to complete work on the prebuild
" and other vital design, environmental and cost analysis work that remained.

As 1982 progressed and other project developments were taken into
consideration, Northwest Alaskan started to refine workload projections
and short-range schedules for 1983, such that further reductions were
indicated. The OFI cut back its funding and staffing accordingly and, in
November 1982, projected that its budget could be reduced to approximately
$6 million and its staff to approximately 40 employees by the end of FY
1983. The timing of the OFI's reductions were based on the premise that
most of the design criteria review, audit, and permitting work on the
lTast items submitted by Northwest Alaskan could be completed by mid-1983.
After that and tle conclusion of post-construction work on the Eastern
Leg prebuild system, OFI work would be limited to some technical analyses
and updates; review of the sponsor's environmental and technical plans;
advance planning for Phase Il; liaison with the sponsor, State and local
groups, and the Canadians; and essential administrative and management
functions to keep the agency operating smoothly.

I would now 1ike to discuss the latest developments in the pipeline
project and the current outlook for its eventual completion.

Northwest Alaskan, after its spring 1982 announcement on the slippage
to a 1989-90 completion date, has steadily reduced its staff, although
it has continued to pursue a variety of biological, physical and civil
projects along the pipeline corridor, all under OFI review. As for the OFI's
total staff, it dropped to a total of 26 employees by September 30, 1983.
The Omaha field office, operations center for Eastern Leg oversight, closed
in April 1983. Although small staffs remain in Anchorage and Irvine, where
the engineering staff is located, most of the OFI's personnel are located
in Washington, D.C. Staff continues to complete permitting, design review,
cost auditing and enforcement responsibilities, while monitoring a host of
sponsor technical studies such as on frost heave, and removal of carbon
dioxide fro— the gas stream. The OFI recently received its FY 1984 appro-
priation of $2,963,000, which is based on a workforce of approximately
30 positions. : .
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On May 9, 1983, Phase I construction in Canada was completed by
Foothills, the Canadian sponsor consortium. Afterward, Foothills cut its
staff and the NPA followed suit, trimming its roster to 28 full-time equiva-
lent positions by layoffs and temporary reassignments. At this time, the
NPA plans to reduce its staff to the equivalent of 15 employees by the
spring of 1984,

Operations on the prebuild segments have continued to run smoothly,
although, because of marketing problems, gas flows now represent only
about 40 percent of the volumes available for export under existing con-
tracts. Northwest Alaskan Pipeline Company has just negotiated interim
purchase agreements with Pan Alberta, reducing its minimum take obliga-
tion through October 1984 to 40 percent of contracted capacity. Additional
efforts are underway to lower the delivered cost of the Phase I gas to im=
prove its marketability.

As mentioned previously, the latest announced schedule still calls
for system completion in late 1989. While it is still theoretically possible
to maintain that schedule, the sponsors' ability to make the necessary
commitments for the procurement of equipment and materials depends on the
progress that is made toward obtaining the necessary gas sales contracts
and financing. Little progress has been made in this area due to current
conditions in the energy markets.

At the last partnership meeting, held in October 1983, the partnership
authorized expenditures for the fourth quarter of 1983. At this time, North-
west Alaskan has about 50 employees, including contractor personnel; they
plan to maintain this level during the fourth quarter. The OFI's authorized
strength is now 30 employees, which represents our core workforce; however,
because of unanticipated departures, we currently have only 26 employees.

We are exploring ways to fill the employment gaps to be sure there will be
no sacrifice in the accomplishment of our critical functions.

On September 20, 1983, Northwest Enerqy Company, parent of Northwest
Alaskan Pipeline Company, and the Williams Companies announced the execution
of a merger agreement under which Williams Companies would acquire, for
cash, all the outstanding shares of common stock of Northwest Energy. Sub-
sequently, John McMillian was replaced as Chairman of Northwest Energy by
Joseph H. Williams; Vernon T. Jones, who will continue as an Executive
Vice President and Director of Williams Companies was named President and
Chief Executive Officer of Northwest, as well as the principal executive,
of Northwest Alaskan Pipeline Company.

I have been informed by Mr. Jones in writing that Northwest Energy Com-
pany and the Williams Companies will actively support and provide leader-
ship to the ANGTS project, and that no significant changes in Northwest's
stewardship of the project are planned. Northwest Alaskan is expected to
continue as operator for the sponsoring partnership and the Design and
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Board. Mr. Jones also stated that the project has been brought

to a relatively advanced stage of planning so that it could be implemented
without significant delay when economic conditions are appropriate.

Much has been accomplished to assure tha. the Alaskan Leg can move
forward at the appropriate time:

-

°

o

The sponsors have revised and submitted 29 of 31 sections

of the pipeline Design Criteria Manual to the OFI. The

OF1 has reviewed and approved 28 of them. The remaining

three sections are expected to be approved by the end of

1984, including the final approval of frost heave methodology.

Ten of 25 environmental and construction procedure plans
required by the DOI Right-of-Way grant have been given final
approval; 10 more are being prepared, revised or are under
review, and are expected to be completed in 1984. Five
have been deferred until remobilization.

In early June 1983, the sponsors submitted their proposed
approach for the prediction and mitigation of frost heave

to OFI for review. The OFI has reviewed the submission,
assisted by the Cold Regions Engineering Technical Committee,
and, in September, conditionally approved the approach, sub-
ject to certain additional testing.

In early July 1983, the sponsors submitted an analysis of a
new process and design for the Alaska Gas Conditioning Facili-
ty. In September, OFI approved the use of the new process and
approved the proposed design for procurement and further de-
tailed design work. The new design will reduce the cost of
the conditioning facilities by about 25 percent, or $1 billion,
and also eliminates the need for 1 of the 3 previously planred
sealifts.

The FERC has issued orders on the Certification Cost Estimate
and Shipper Tracking, thus completing its work on all pending
issues related to the Alaskan Leg, except for the condition-
ing plant cost estimate which has been deferred at the spon-
sor's request. The DOI Right-of-Way grant has also been issued.

We believe that construction of the second phase of the ANGTS system

could begin

about 2 years after an order to remobilize. The key steps neces-

sary to a remobilization are:

1.

Rehiring of a project team.
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2. Completion of frost heave work, field investigations,
Design Criteria review, and the engineering "bridge"
. needed between the Design Criteria and the Final Design
effort.

3. Completion of the Final (70 percent) Design work.

4. Submission of gas sales contracts, financing plans and
marketability studies to FERC, and receipt of the Final
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity.

5. Approval of a Right-of-Way grant from the State of Alaska.

In summary, all major regulatory work has been done except the final
FERC certification, which will require financing plans, gas contracts,
marketability studies, and a Right-of-Way grant by the State of Alaska.
The basic engineering is almost complete to begin the Final Design. The
solution to the frost heave problem is close at hand, and the sponsors
have a good program to complete this basic engineering work.

The ANGTS project has thus reached the point where it can proceed
expeditiously to construction. Plans have been developed to the point
where costs should be well controlled and the project well engineered.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my prepared statement. 1 will be happy
to answer any questions you may have. ’

Senator Murkowskl. Thank you, Mr. Rhett.

The next witness, Mr. Jan Mares, Acting Director, Office of
Policy, Planning and Analysis, and Assistant Secretary of Fossil
Energy, Department of Energy.

STATEMENT OF HON. JAN W. MARES, ACTING DIRECTOR, OFFICE
OF POLICY, PLANNING AND ANALYSIS, AND ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY, FOSSIL ENERGY, DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Mr. Margs. Thank you Mr, Chairman.

I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss the alternatives
for marketing Alaskan natural gas. As you know, the U.S. Govern-
ment, pursuant to its agreement with the Government of Canada,
has supported the ANGTS based on the principle of private financ-
ing. Consistent with this principle the United States has pledged to
and, in fact, has removed legal or regulatory barriers that would
inhibit or prevent private interests from proceeding with the devel-
opment of ANGTS.

At this moment in time, the United States currently has a sur-
plus deliverability of natural gas that’s estimated to be between 2
and 4 trillion cubic feet. However, in the longer term, additional
supplies of natural gas are expected to be needed certainly in the
United States, and in the addition, there is an anticipated long-
term need for additional natural gas supplies on the world market.
Both the United States and the world market could provide poten-
tial markets for Alaskan gas.

The issue is not whether markets for Alaskan gas would be avail-
gblq, but when they will provide demand at a price which would
justify the enormous investments required to bring this gas to
market. This is a question that’s best left to the judgment of pri-
vate commercial interests, and not to the Government. Changes in
the energy market have affected the timetable for the ANGTS
project. Witnesses who are involved in that project will be testify-
ing here and can best estimate when the project will be completed
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and its status. The U.S. consortium, as you know, is headed by a
new sponsor. We understand that the participants are fully com-
mitted to proceed with the completion of the project and are work-
ing to achieve that result. We are encouraged by this view, and will
continue our commitment to the ANGTS, as we have in the past.

You are also hearing today from representatives of some inves-
tors and developers who have expressed interest in the possibility
of other pipeline routes and the export potential for Alaskan gas.
In connection with these and other proposals, decisions about the
development of Alaska’s gas resources must be made by investors
and commercial parties based on the facts about the supply and
demand for natural gas. It is the administration’s desire to encour-
age companies to make investment decisions consistent with their
best economic judgments. We will not take action that would stand
in the way of activities to successfully and economically develop
Alaska’s gas resources.

I will stop at this stage and turn it over to my other panel
member, Mr. Wendt.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Mares follows:]
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STATEMENT OF JAN W. MARES

ACTING DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF POLICY, PLANNING, AND ANALYSIS

ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR FOSSIL ENERGY

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss alternatives
for marketing Alaskan natural gas. As you know, the goal of
this Administration's policy, as described in our recent
National Energy Policy Plan, "is to foster an adequaté supply
of energy at reasonable cost." The strategies we have adopted
for pursuing this goal are first, to minimize federal control
and involvement in energy markets; and second, to promote a

balanced mixed energy resource system.

The NEPP further notes that this country's resources are
sufficient to ensure a secure, diverse mix of energy supply
well beyond the year 2000 and that the timely, economic
development of these resources will be determined, in part, by
how well federal programs--in particular, leasing of public
lands and the Outer Continental Shelf--support private
initiatives and investment in exploration and development
activities. For purposes of today's hearing, the energy policy
point I want to emphasize is that the timing and economics of
developing Alaska's resources are issues which private

commercial interests should and will decide.
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Gas resources in the State of Alaska represent a significant
gpource of future energy supply. About 26 trillion cubic feet
of recoverable gas has already been discovered on the North
slope. The potential for additional discoveries is extremely
high. A 1981 study by the National Petroleum Council estimates
that potentially recoverable gas resources in the U.S. Arctic
total approximately 109 TCF. If and when exploration converts
significant portions of this potential into recoverable
resources, the amount of natural gas available from on and
offshore Alaska could be sufficient to serve both domestic and

international demand for natural gas.

The development and marketing of Alaskan gas resources,
however, present formidable engineering and transportation
challenges and will require tens of billions in private
capital. Three billion dollars already have been invested by
American and Canadian companies in the transportation system
approved by both governments for bringing North Slope gas to
the U.S. markets. This project, the Alaska Natural Gas
Transportation System (ANGTS), has been in the development

stage since 1976,
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It has been undertaken pursuant co a series of actions,
beginning with the 1977 Transit Pipeline Treaty and the
U.S.-Canadian Agreement on the Alaska Natural Gas
Transportation System, whereby the governments of the United
States and Canada have mutually agreed to facilitate the
construction and operation of ANGTS. There have been
continuing Presidential and Congressional actions in support of

the project.

In 1980, the Congress adopted a resolution declaring, in part,
that ANGTS remains, "... an essential part of securing this
Nation's energy future and enjoys the highest level of
Congressional support for its expeditious construction and
completion ..." Later that year, President Carter wrote to
Prime Minster Trudeau reconfirming the U.S. Government's
cormmitment to the ANGTS project and indicating his willingness
to initiate action before the Congress to remove legal

impediments to private financing for ANGTS.

Based on these assurances by Congress and the President, the
Canadian government authorized construction of the Canadian
portion of the southern legs of the system -~ the so-called
"prebuild" sections. The prebuild was constructed to allow
Canadian gas to be brought to U.S.’markeps in the Midwest and
on the West Coast, thereby facilitating financing of the ANGTS
project. Construction of the prebuild has been largely

completed, and gas from Canadian wells is now flowing through

these lines to U.S. markets.
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president Reagan has continued the earlier commitments of this
government to ANGTS. In March, 1981 he addressed the Canadian
parliament, describing ANGTS as "... one of éhe largest joint
private projects ever undertaken by two nations ..." and
stating that, "we strongly favor prompt completion of this
project based on private financing." 1In a message to Congress
on October 15, 1981, he reiterated his support for completion
of the project based on private financing, and he emphasized
the importance of the project as "a symbol of U.S.-Canadian
ability to work togdether cboperatively in the energy area for

the benefit of both countries and peoples.”

The United States Government, pursuant to its agreement with
the Government of Canada, has supported the ANGTS based on the
principle of private financing. Consistent with this
principle, the U.S. pledged to remove legal or regulatory
barriers that would inhibit or prevent private interests from

proceeding with the development of ANGTS.

In fulfillment of this pledge, President Reagan proposed
waivers of law which were approved by Congress on December 15,
"1981. Since then, we have continued to cooperate fully with
the Canadian government in matters involving ANGTS. 1In this
connection, we will engage later this month in formal
consultations, as requested by Canada, on policy and regulatory

issues involving the prebuild section of ANGTS.
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As members of this Committee are well aware, the energy market
has changed considerably since 1977. Current demand for energy
is lower than what was projected at that time, and energy
prices héQe not increased to the levels then anticipated.

These facts are true for the United States; they also are true

for world energy markets.

In terms of natural gas, the United States currently has a
surplus deliverability of natural gas estimated to be about 2
to 4 trillion cubic feet. If, as this Administration believes
is critically necessary, the Congress acts to decontrol natural
gas prices, the U.S. gas market will come into balance, and the
current surplus will be eventually eliminated, probably over
the next several years. Over the longer term, additional
supplies of natural gas are expected to be needed. In
addition, the anticipated long-term need for additional natural
gas supplies on the world market could provide potential

foreign markets for Alaskan gas.

The issue is not whether markets for Alaskan gas will be
available, but when they will provide demand at a price which
will justify the enormous investments required to bring this
gas to market. This is a guestion best left to the judgment of

private commercial interests, and not to the government.
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changes in the energy market have affected the timetable for
the ANGTS project. Witnesses who are involved directly in the
ANGTS project and will testify at today's hearing can best
estimate-ﬁhen the system will be completed. The U.S.
consortium is headed by a new sponsor. We understand that the
ANGTS participants are fully committed to proceed with
completion of the project and are working to achieve that
result. We are encouraged by this view, and will continue our

commitment to the ANGTS as we have in the past.

You are also hearing today from representatives of some
investors and developers who have expressed interest in thé
possibility of other pipeline routes and the export potential
for Alaskan gas. In connection with these and other proposals,
decisions about the development of Alaska's gas resources must
be made by investors and commercial parties based on the facts
about the supply and demand for natural gas. It is the
Administration's desire to encourage companies to make
investment decisions consistent with their best economic
judgments. We will not take action that would stand in the way
of actjvities to successfully and economically develop Alaska's

gas resources.
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In general, we agree with the NPC's finding in its report on
U.S. Arctic 0il and Gas that, "the volume of economically
recoverable gas would likely increase substantially if existing
or planned production and/or transportation systems are in
place and available at the time of development ..."(emphasis
added). Our position in this regard is consistent with the

principles underlying our commitment to the ANGTS system.

This concludes my formal statement, Mr. Chairman. I will be

happy to respond to the Committee's questions.

STATEMENT OF HON. E. ALLAN WENDT, DEPUTY ASSISTANT SEC-
RETARY FOR INTERNATIONAL ENERGY AND RESOURCE
POLICY, DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Mr. WENDT. Mr. Chairman, I, too, appreciate the opportunity to
be here this afternoon to discuss the development of one of this
country’s major untapped sources of energy, and that is the tre-
mendous reserves of natural gas found in the North Slope area of
the State of Alaska. In these times of world oil and gas surpluses,
it is perhaps easy to overlook the need to press forward with com-
mercial development of our own energy resources.

This administration has already made a major effort to remove
regulatory impediments to the development of Alaskan gas. There
is no doubt that gaining access to reserves which amount to some
13 percent of total proven U.S. gas reserves would contribute mate-
rially to both United States and overall Western energy security.
We are concerned, Mr. Chairman, that the private development of
North Slope gas proceed as soon as it is economical.

In 1981, President Reagan continued the earlier commitments of
this Government to remove regulatory impediments to the private
financing of the ANGTS project. It should be clear to all that it has
been and remains the policy of this administration to support the
ANGTS project based on private financing. At the same time, it
would not seem reasonable for the administration to stand in the
way of private sector efforts to develop other feasible options. In
order to examine other possible options more fully, the United
States-Japan Energy Working Group, which was created last Janu-
ary by President Reagan and Prime Minister Nakasone, has ex-
plored the market for LNG in Japan and the costs involved in get-
ting gas from the North Slope to Japan. The Japanese have told us
that, like the U.S. market, the Japanese gas market is saturated at
this time. That is to say, they have commitments to meet their ex-
pected LNG needs through the early 1990’s. By the mid-1990’s,
however, there could be a substantial supply-and-demand gap in
Japan which Alaskan gas might fill if it is price competitive.
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As you have noted, Mr. Chairman, last Friday, November 11, the
President and the Prime Minister of Japan released a statement in
Tokyo on bilateral energy cooperation. That statement said in part:

The United States and Japan will encourage private industry in both countries to
undertake now the prefeasibility or feasibility studies necessary to determine the

extent to which Alaskan natural gas can be jointly developed by United States and
Japanese interests.

Mr. Chairman, let there be no doubt that we maintain our previ-
ous commitments to the ANGTS project based on private financing
and development and that we recognize fully that considerable re-
sources have already been expended to bring the project to fruition.
At the same time, we do note that the President and Prime Minis-
ter Nakasone agreed in Tokyo to encourage United States and Jap-
anese private industry to explore the potential for joint develop-
ment of Alaskan gas resources.

In sum, Mr. Chairman, we believe that as a government we are
doing everything reasonable and appropriate to promote the pri-
vate development of Alaskan gas in the interest of all parties. Ulti-
mately the decisions and choices of the private sector will deter-
mine how and when Alaskan natural gas resources are developed
and brought to market.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Wendt follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF
E. ALLAN WENDT
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE

FOR INTERNATIONAL ENERGY AND RESOURCE POLICY

IT IS A PLEASURE TO BE HERE THIS AFTERNOON TO DISCUSS THE
DEVELOPMENT OF ONE OF THIS COUNTRY'S MAJOR UNTAPPED SOURCES OF
ENERGY -- THE TREMENDOUS RESERVES OF NATURAL GAS FOUND IN THE
NORTH SLOPE AREA OF THE STATE OF ALASKA. IN THESE TIMES OF
WORLD OIL AND GAS SURPLUSES, IT IS PERHAPS EASY TO OVERLOOK THE
NEED TO PRESS FORWARD WITH COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT OF OUR OWN
ENERGY RESOURCES. ENERGY SECURITY, HOWEVER., REQUIRES
CONTINUING VIGILANCE AND ALASKAN GAS HAS AN IMPORTANT ROLE TO
PLAY IN OUR ENERGY SECURITY CONSIDERATIONS. BOTH THE
WILLIAMSBURG SUMMIT DECLARATION IN JUNE AND THE CONCLUSIONS OF
THE MINISTERIAL MEETING OF THE INTERNATIONAL ENERGY AGENCY IN
MAY OF THIS YEAR HIGHLIGHTED THE IMPORTANCE WE ATTACH TO THE
EARLY DEVELOPMENT OF INDIGENOUS ENERGY RESOURCES IN THE
INTEREST OF ENHANCING WESTERN ENERGY SECURITY.

THIS ADMINISTRATION HAS ALREADY MADE A MAJOR EFFORT 7O
REMOVE REGULATORY IMPEDIMENTS TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF ALASKAN
6AS. THERE IS NO DOUBT THAT GAINING ACCESS TO RESERVES WHICH
AMOUNT TO SOME 13% OF TOTAL PROVEN U.S. GAS RESERVES WOULD
CONTRIBUTE MATERIALLY TO BOTH U.S. AND OVERALL WESTERN ENERGY
SECURITY. h

IT 1S WITH THIS OBJECTIVE IN MIND THAT THE UNITED STATES
HAS WORKED CLOSELY WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF CANADA FOR NEARLY A
DECADE TO PROVIDE THE PROPER FRAMEWORK FOR THE PRIVATE
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il
DEVELOPMENT OF NORTH SLOPE ALASKAN GAS RESOURCES AND THE
COMPLETION OF THE ALASKA NATURAL GAS TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM.
THE ANGTS, AS YOU WILL RECALL, WAS CHOSEN IN 1977 BY PRESIDENT
CARTER AND APPROVED BY THE CONGRESS AS THE BEST OF THREE
ALTERNATIVES TO BRING NORTH SLOPE GAS TO THE U.S. MARKET. A
-TREATY WAS NEGOTIATED WITH CANADA TO ENSURE A STABLE REGULATORY
AND ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT. FINALLY, PRESIDENT CARTER PROMISED
THE CANADIANS IN WRITING THAT WE WOULD REMOVE THE REGULATORY

IMPEDIMENTS TO THE PRIVATE FINANCING OF THE PROJECT.

IN 1981, PRESIDENT REAGAN CONTINUED THE EARLIER COMMITMENTS
OF THIS GOVERNMENT TO THE ANGTS PROJECT, BASED ON PRIVATE
FINANCING, BOTH IN DIRECT COMMUNICATION TO THE CANADIAN
PARLIAMENT AND THROUGH THE ADMINISTRATION'S SPONSORSHIP OF
LEGISLATION TO OBTAIN THE LEGAL WAIVERS NECESSARY FOR THE ANGTS
PROJECT TO PROCEED. IN SO DOING, HE FOLLOWED UP ON OUR
COMMITMENT TO REMOVE REGULATORY IMPEDIMENTS TO THE PRIVATE
FINANCING OF THE PROJECT. IT SHOULD BE VERY CLEAR TO ALL THAT
IT HAS BEEN AND REMAINS THE POLICY OF THIS ADMINISTRATION TO
SUPPORT THE ANGTS PROJECT BASED ON PRIVATE FINAﬁCING.L

THERE CAN BE NO DENYING, HOWEVER, THAT DESPITE THE BEST
EFFORTS OF THE U.S. GOVERNMENT TO REMOVE LEGAL AND REGULATORY
OBSTACLES, PRIVATE FINANCING NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE ANGTS
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PROJECT HAS NOT YET BEEN FORTHCOMING. WE CAN SPECULATE ABOUT
THE REASONS FOR THIS STATE OF AFFAIRS, BUT CLEARLY. THE CURRENT
GAS DELIVERABILITY SURPLUS IN THE U.S. AND THE UNCERTAIN
PRICING CONDITIONS THIS SURPLUS HAS CREATED HAVE LED BANKS AND
}NVESTORS TO BE CAUTIOUS. WHETHER THE U.S. 6AS MARKET WILL
CHANGE ANY TIME SOON IS A QUESTION WE CANNOT ANSWER AT THIS
POINT.

‘IN ANY EVENT. AS A RESULT OF THESE UNCERTAINTIES. SOME
PRIVATE BUSINESS INTERESTS HAVE BEEN LOOKING AT ALTERNATIVES
FOR MARKETING ALASKAN GAS IN AREAS OQUTSIDE THE U.S., SUCH AS
JAPAN AND PERHAPS KOREA. SOME PRELIMINARY STUDIES HAVE
EXAMINED THE POTENTIAL FOR MARKETING NORTH SLOPE GAS IN JAPAN
IN THE M1D-1990s.

WE ARE CONCERNED THAT PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT OF NORTH SLOPE
GAS PROCEED AS SOON AS IT IS ECONOMIC. WE CONTINUE TO SUPPORT
PREVIOUS COMMITMENTS TO THE ANGTS PROJECT BASED ON PRIVATE
FINANCING. AT THE SAME TIME, IT WOULD NOT SEEM REASONABLE FOR
THE ADMINISTRATION TO STAND IN THE WAY OF PRIVATE SECTOR
EFFORTS TO DEVELOP OTHER FEASIBLE OPTIONS. SUCH A POSTURE.,
MOREOVER, IS IN KEEPING WITH THE ADMINISTRATION'S PHILOSOPHY OF
SEEKING TO REMOVE REGULATORY OBSTACLES TO PRIVATE SECTOR
INITIATIVES TO DEVELOP THE NATION'S ENERGY RESOURCES.
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IN ORDER TO EXAMINE OTHER POSSIBLE OPTIONS MORE FULLY, THE
(.S.-JAPAN ENERGY WORKING GROUP. CREATED LAST JANUARY BY
PRESIDENT REAGAN AND PRIME MINISTER NAKASONE., HAS EXPLORED THE
MARKET FOR LNG IN JAPAN AND THE COSTS INVOLVED IN GETTING GAS
oM THE NORTH SLOPE TO JAPAN. THE JAPANESE HAVE TOLD US THAT
LIKE THE U.S. MARKET, THE JAPANESE GAS MARKET IS SATURATED AT
THIS TIMEs THAT IS, THEY HAVE COMMITHMENTS TO MEET THEIR
gXPECTED LNG NEEDS THROUGH THE EARLY 1990's. BY THE
uip-1990's, HOWEVER, THERE COULD BE A SUBSTANTIAL SUPPLY GAP IN
JAPAN WHICH ALASKAN GAS MIGHT FILL IF IT IS PRICE COMPETITIVE.

AS YOU MAY BE AWARE. MR. CHAIRMAN, JUST LAST FRIDAY,
NoveMBER 11, THE PRESIDENT AND THE PRIME MINISTER OF JAPAN
RELEASED A STATEMENT IN JAPAN ON BILATERAL ENERGY COOPERATION.
THAT STATEMENT SAID IN PART, "THE U.S. AND JAPAN WILL ENCOURAGE
PRIVATE INDUSTRY IN BOTH COUNTRIES TO UNDERTAKE NOW THE
PRE-FEASIBILITY OR FEASIBILITY STUDIES NECESSARY TO DETERMINE
THE EXTENT TO WHICH ALASKAN NATURAL GAS CAN BE JOINTLY
DEVELOPED BY U.S. AND JAPANESE INTERESTS."

33-865 O—84——3
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SoME PRIVATE SECTOR INTERESTS HAVE SUGGESTED THE CONCEPT OF
A Y-SHAPED SYSTEM: THAT IS, A COMMON PIPELINE FROM THE NORTH
SLoPE TO FAIRBANKS AND THEN SEPARATE LEGS -~ ONE FOR THE ANGTS
SYSTEM AND ONE TOWARD A TIDEWATER LNG PLANT, THE ASSUMPTION
BEING THAT THERE IS PROBABLY ENOUGH GAS IN ALASKA OVER AND
ABOVE THE KNOWN PROVEN NORTH SLOPE RESERVES OF 26 TCF TO SERVE
BOTH THE U.S. AND OTHER PACIFIC-RIM MARKETS. WE HAVE NOT TRIED
TO ASSESS THE ECONOMIC VIABILITY OF SUCH A PLAN, BUT NEITHER
HAVE WE REACHED THE CONCLUSION THAT AN LNG PROJECT AND THE
ANGTS PROJECT ARE INCOMPATIBLE.

ALL THIS BEING SAID, HOWEVER, THERE ARE NO COST-EFFECTIVE
MEANS UNDER CURRENT MARKET CONDITIONS TO DEVELOP NORTH SLOPE
GAS RESERVES. REINJECTION COSTS ARE HIGH AND RISING. FURTHER,
WITHOUT A COMMERCIAL MARKET THERE IS LIMITED INCENTIVE FOR THE
COMPANIES TO EXPLORE FURTHER FOR GAS. THE VAST POTENTIAL OF
WHICH THEREFORE REMAINS UNREALIZED.

I WANT TO ASSURE THE COMMITTEE WE IN THE ADMINISTRATION
HAVE NOT LOST SIGHT OF THE IMPORTANT BENEFITS TO THE STATE OF
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ALAskA, THE U.S., AND THE WESTERN ALLTIANCE THAT WILL STEM FROM
pEVELOPMENT OF NORTH SLOPE GAS. LET THERE BE NO DOUBT THAT WE
MAINTAIN OUR PREVIOUS COMMITMENTS TO THE ANGTS PROJECT BASED ON
PRIVATE FINANCING AND DEVELOPMENT, AND THAT WE RECOGNIZE THAT
CONSIDERABLE RESOURCES HAVE ALREADY BEEN EXPENDED TO BRING THE
PROTECT TO FRUITION. AT THE SAME TIME, WE NOTE THAT THE
PRESIDENT AND PRIME MINISTER NAKASONE AGREED IN TOKYO TO
ENCOURAGE U.S. AND JAPANESE PRIVATE INDUSTRY TO EXPLORE THE
POTENTIAL FOR JOINT DEVELOPMENT OF ALASKAN GAS RESOURCES.

IN SUM, WE BELIEVE THAT AS A GOVERNMENT WE ARE DOING
EVERYTHING REASONABLE AND APPROPRIATE TO PROMOTE THE PRIVATE
DEVELOPMENT OF ALASKAN GAS IN THE INTEREST OF ALL PARTIES.
ULTIMATELY, THE DECISIONS AND CHOICES OF THE PRIVATE SECTOR
WILL DETERMINE HOW AND WHEN ALASKAN NATURAL GAS RESOURCES ARE
DEVELOPED AND BROUGHT TO MARKET.

Senator Murkowskl. Thank you, Mr. Wendt.

Just a few brief questions. Mr. Rhett, what is the status of your
office currently? It’s summarized by some that you appear to be
closing up shop.

Mr. RuETT. Well, let's say we're getting close to the bottom. The
size of our shop is a function of the workload and, as you know
from the past, I have cut back on staff as the workload decreased.
We're actually down to about 26 in four separate locations. The
Irvine, Calif., office is where we’re working with the engineering
element of Northwest. There are presently four people there.

In Alaska, the Anchorage office has six people, with two in Fair-
banks who are liaisons to the State of Alaska and Northwest.

This is the core staff needed to keep up with the sponsor’s work-
load and to remobilize.

Senator Murkowskl. And your budget currently in the 1983
fiscal year?

Mr. RuETT. We are presently at about $6 million.

Senator MUurkowsKr. And 1984 is projected to be?

Mr. RuerT. We're into 1984 now, and that will be a little under
$3 million. The budget for 1983 was about $6 million, but we did
not spend that much.

Senator Murkowski. The data you have accumulated over the
last couple of years that’s basic property of the Federal Govern-
ment, the Office of the Federal Inspector, available to the project.

Mr. RHETT. Yes. It is to the project; however, a lot of the informa-
tion the Government has is business confidential.

Senator MurkowsKlI. In the event as indicated by my opening re-
marks, and it will be brought out later in testimony, if there were
another proposal that was seriously considered, would the Federal
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Government have the opportunity to dispose of its information by
selling it or is it available free or, what kind of arrangements
might there be?

Mr. Ruerr. Mr. Chairman, let me skirt this one because it's a
highly legal matter which I am not qualified to answer, as an engi-
neer. But quite a bit of the information is proprietary or business
confidential. It’s owned by the sponsors. It was provided to the Fed-
eral Government so that we could do the required reviews. But
again, this information is protected and we do protect it. We have a
separate setup to make sure that it is. The franchise right now
under which I operate is strictly for the ANGTS by law.

Senator MurkowsKL I would like to talk a little bit about gas re-
serves and the responsibility of the Department of Energy to ascer-
tain gas reserves.

It has been my understanding that the estimate has been about
26 trillion cubic feet proven reserves for Alaska. But I'm wonder-
ing, does the Department of Energy continually update those fig-
ures or is there any indication of what the reserves might current-
ly be as a consequence of gas findings that are a direct result for
continued oil exploration as has been the case in the North Slope
of Alaska?

Mr. Mares. We periodically publish estimates. The Department
itself does not do reserve estimates. The agency of the Government
that has a greater responsibility for this is the U.S. Geological
survey. We do collect that sort of information.

We did as a Department sponsor the request of the National Pe-
troleum Council to do a study for us of the potential economically
recoverable resource in Alaska and as I recollect, the estimate was
that it was about 109 trillion cubic feet. That’s a potential resource
that doesn’t become a recoverable reserve until in fact it is found
and some of the development has been done. So my understanding
is similar to yours, that there is today about 26 trillion cubic feet
that is in the proven category, but there is a potential for substan-
tially more.

Senator MurkowskI. Mr. Rhett, I would throw this at the panel.
There has been a perception that the Alaska Natural Gas Trans-
mission Act in 1976 and subsequent acts of Congress has promised
Prudhoe Bay gas to the exclusion of all other possible users of the
gas. From your vantage point of view, do you have a comment that
in reality that is the case? And if not, is there a practical alterna-
tive in your opinion?

Mr. RHETT. I think really this is one Mr. Mares should answer.

Mr. Mages. I think your statement is accurate, that there is a
generally held view that the gas on the North Slope proven re-
serves has in essence been committed to the ANGTS project.

Senator Murkowski. Then 1 would refer to the last gentleman
who hasn’t had a chance to defend himself, in view of your com-
ments, recognizing the recent communique that was negotiated
governing energy policy between the United States and Japan that
may be somewhat applicable to earlier as well, you seem to infer
we could be officially looking at two projects here from the stand-
point of the administration. And my question to you, are two
projects in essence in conflict? But the fact that one in fact enjoys
a franchise and the other appears to be in the embrionic stage, a
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formulation into a different marketplace. Does a different market-
place mean that the two could be looked at simultaneously or are
you looking in effect to one?

Mr. WENDT. Mr. Chairman, the declaration that was issued in
Tokyo encourages private industry in both countries to explore the

otential for development of Alaskan North Slope gas resources
and to undertake prefeasibility or feasibility studies. It really
doesn’t even address the question of whether or not, if these feasi-
pility studies were to reach the point or take the form of a serious
project, there might be some legislative obstacle.

I understand there is a view of the General Counsel of the De-
partment of Energy which is in accordance, of course, with what
Mr. Mares said, and I believe that is also the view of the Legal Ad-
viser’s Office of the Department of State.

Presumably, if the prefeasibility or feasibility studies are con-
ducted and they indicate that they should be pursued, obviously
the private sector sponsors of those studies would have to take a
long hard look at whatever legislative obstacles there may be to
pursuance of the project.

Senator Murkowski. As a followup, is it possible for the private
sector to realistically attempt to develop Alaska gas, to explore it
when the administration has maintained its continuing commit-
ment to the ANGTS?

Wouldn’t you agree that financial and market conditions are
going to dictate, to some extent, the reality of one vis-a-vis the
other? And Mr. Mares has not indicated whether in effect there's
enough gas for two and we may get into that later. I hope we do,
with some expert witnesses that have information.

We seem to have the administration posture, if you will, support-
ing both. Not specifically a gas liquefication project as much as the
idea of working with our allies in the Pacific rim countries to see if
it's feasible to market liquified natural gas from Alaska basically
to do something about the deficit in the balance of payments, be-
cause I recognize they’re not going to be able to do it with oranges.

Now by the same token, the administration has a commitment to
back the ANGTS project. I assume what you're saying, Mr. Wendt,
is you don’t see the conflict because we're involved in the feasibili-
ty stage and as a consequence it's immaterial.

Mr. WeNDT. Mr. Chairman, I don’t see any conflict at this stage
as I indicated. If those private sector interests that wish to pursue
the development of Alaskan North Slope gas find through their
studies that this proposal has merit and should be developed, I
don’t see any reason why they shouldn’t push things that far. Obvi-
ously at some point, if that stage were reached, the question of leg-
islative obstacles would have to be faced up to.

Senator MurkowsKI. So it’s the service of doing business and it
may be one or the other and it may be one or possibly both. So you
don’t see a conflict. All right, I appreciate that.

Mr. Mares, one other question. The communique that was re-
ferred to does specify that the United States will encourage the pri-
vate sector specifically to undertake feasibility or prefeasibility
studies of gas. What steps is the Department of Energy prepared to
take to encourage or assist in these feasibility studies? Do you see
1t as part of your role?
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Mr. Mares. We don’t see that as part of our role. The decision
and final analysis has got to be made by the private investors, and
they are best equipped to decide the nature of the study and how
they want to——

Senator Murkowskl. The Department of Energy has made some
progress in experimental areas before in regard to energy and I
thought they would volunteer.

Mr. Mares. We've tried not to support those feasibility studies,
sometimes with less success than we would like.

Senator Murkowskl. I've noticed that. I don’t know if I should
urge that you stay out of this one, I see you're not openly volun-
teering.

I want to thank the witnesses. I think your opening statements
have been pointed and your responses have been more than we ex-
pected, and with that I thank you and wish you good day, and
would encourage your continued participation on this very impor-
tant issue.

Additional questions may be submitted to you.

I will now call the second panel, and I find this one lonely gentle-
man from the State of Alaska, the Hon. Richard Lyon, commission-
er of economic development from the State of Alaska, accompanied
by Mr. Mark Wittow, Office of the Governor, State of Alaska.

I see, Mr. Lyon that Governor Hickle was glad to take your seat.
It appears that the system is working.

Mr. LyonN. He also asked for a check, Mr. Chairman.

Senator MurkowskI. Please proceed with your testimony. We
certainly welcome you before the committee representing Governor
Sheffield, the Governor of Alaska, and we understand that you are
the proud owner of one-eighth of all the gas in existence in Alaska,
is that correct?

Mr. Lyon. That is right, Mr. Chairman. I would hope that the
owners of the other seven-eights help us along the way to getting
all eight-eights merchandised.

Senator MurkowskI. Christmas is coming, you know what they
say about wishes.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD LYON, COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCE
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, STATE OF ALASKA, ACCOMPA.
NIED BY MARK WITTOW, OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, STATE
OF ALASKA

Mr. LyonN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm Richard Lyon, commis-
sioner of the Alaska Department of Commerce and Economic De-
velopment. With me is Mark Wittow, associate director of the
Alaska Governor’s Office in Washington, D.C.

We appreciate the opportunity to present the views of the State
of Alaska on the North Slope gas reserves to the Senate Energy
Committee.

On behalf of Governor Sheffield we would like to thank you for
holding these oversight hearings on a subject of vital concern to
Alaska.

Development of the extremely large natural gas reserves found
on Alaska’s North Slope is clearly in the best interests of the
nation and of Alaska. Those reserves, some 26 trillion cubic feet at
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prudhoe Bay—the equivalent of 4.5 billion barrels of oil—and sev-
eral trillion cubic feet in adjacent fields, are a vital American
energy resource. Encouraging the development of North Slope nat-
ural gas should be a component of national energy policy.

The State supports any project that can reasonably offer the
prospect of bringing Alaska gas to market. This includes our past
and present support of the Alaska Natural Gas Transportation
System. Another reasonable alternative which has recently resur-
faced, under the sponsorship of the newly created Yukon Pacific
Corp., is the prospect of exporting North Slope gas to the Pacific
rim, including Japan. Preliminary studies have shown that this
option for exporting Alaska natural gas is worthy of serious consid-
eration and further scrutiny.

We believe that the market should decide where North Slope gas
is sold. As a matter of equity and economics, federal policy should
allow the market to dictate the best destination for the gas. Be-
cause development of a delivery system for the resource will re-
quire such a tremendous investment, we need to allow the users
who have the greatest need for North Slope gas the opportunity to
develop and purchase it.

Development of North Slope natural gas through sales to the Pa-
cific rilm would provide several significant benefits to the nation as
a whole:

First, large-scale sales of gas would obviously be a welcome con-
tributor to the plus side of our balance-of-payments account. Since
North Slope gas is as yet an undeveloped resource, delivery outside
the United States would not require any additional energy imports.

Second, our relations with the nations of the Pacific rim would
be enhanced by their knowledge that a valued ally was providing a
stable, long-term source of supply for one of their most vital needs,
energy.

Third, the development of North Slope gas reserves would spur
additional exploration and development in that area, as companies
with leasehold interests were provided with an opportunity to
market existing and potential natural gas discoveries. We believe
that such exploration and development is likely to yield substantial
additional energy discoveries, with obvious national benefits.

Fourth, a marine delivery system would have the flexibility to
provide natural gas to the lower 48 as well as to Pacific rim coun-
tries. The development of such a system in the United States would
provide the opportunity, in the long run, for the Nation to utilize
natural gas reserves from Alaska.

Finally, the development of North Slope natural gas will provide
a significant boost to the national economy, with thousands of jobs
created by construction of the delivery system and by the resulting
increased exploration and development activities in northern
Alaska. For example, the development of the Prudhoe Bay oil field
created thousands of jobs in the lower 48 in addition to those cre-
ated in Alaska.

In light of the national and State benefits set out above, Gover-
nor Sheffield discussed the development of Alaska natural gas,
along with oil and coal, during our recent visit to Korea and Japan.
We found a great deal of interest on the part of both private and
public officials in our natural gas reserves. An effort to study the



36

possible contribution of Alaska’s North Slope gas to meeting
Japan’s energy needs is contemplated by the joint statement issued
by President Reagan and Prime Minister Nakasone as a result of
their recent meetings. That statement was quoted earlier by Mr.
Wendt with the United States Department of State, and I won’t
repeat that. We do strongly support a joint effort by the United
States and Japan in that direction.

Japan previously played a pioneering role in the development of
Alaska’s energy resources with the construction of the Kenai LNG
delivery system in the mid-sixties. Because they currently are will-
ing to pay more for natural gas than U.S. consumers, Japan may
be better able to pay the costs of delivering North Slope gas to
market than are U.S. consumers alone.

In closing, we will continue to support the existing efforts to
bring Alaska gas to lower 48 markets. At the same time, we believe
that a sound national energy policy requires a serious discussion of
the option of export to the Pacific rim. We applaud the commit-
ment made by President Reagan and Prime Minister Nakasone to
conduct such an assessment, and look forward to cooperating in the
proposed private feasibility studies.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Murkowsk1. Thank you very much.

I believe you recently accompanied Governor Sheffield to Japan
and had an opportunity to assess for yourself the attitudes prevail-
ing with regard to the long-term energy commitments by Japan
and I believe Mr. Mares commented briefly in his testimony with
reference to the fact that these windows currently seem to be
pretty well committed from other sources.

For the record, if you might give your particular assessment of
how you feel that Alaska gas might find its way to the Pacific rim
market recognizing the fact that Alaska gas probably isn’t going to
be cheap gas, and I'm generalizing when I use that terminology as
opposed to current sources of supply that may come from Indone-
sia, that a layman at least would assume to be less costly gas.

Mr. Lyon. I think if you look at two issues having to do with that
market, Mr. Chairman. For one thing, it’s very clear that there’s a
great deal of interest on the part of both the Koreans and the Jap-
anese in Alaska as an energy resource. And as you have noted and
I also commiented, the Japanese market at least has shown that it’s
willing to pay the current price. For instance the LNG that moves
into Japan right now moves in at a basket price for 20 crude equiv-
alent, basket price of about $4.93, which is a pretty stout price. So
we feel that they should be given an opportunity. From a volume
- standpoint Japan currently imports, the 1980 figure is around 16.8
million metric tons a year of LNG, and their own forecast which is
rising to, the last I heard, around 43 million metric tons. We're
talking about a system as I understand it from Alaska which would
generate about 12 million tons a year. And what the Japanese say
i1s uncovered in 1990 is about 5 million tons that’s not presently
contracted for. Those contracts I suppose are subject to change, but
that market is big enough to at least justify a part of the Alaska
investment. So from a pure volume standpoint we feel the market
is there, even without displacing some existing contracted material.
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Senator MurkowsKi. Obviously, if liquefied gas in quantities that
ou're talking about are going to seriously be considered, you're
talking about some long-term contractual commitments, sometime
out in the future in order for the financing to be obtained. Do you
have any indication of whether or not the State of Alaska might be
interested in participating? I think this is a legitimate question
that came up during the discussions on ANGTS at one time, was
the posture of the State of Alaska because after all one-eighth of
that gas is State royalty gas and the concept of having an equity
interest in a pipeline to move State gas has an application regard-
Jess of where it moves.

Mr. LyoN. The way we see it right now, we think the principle
difficulties in the way of this project are No. 1 economic and No. 2
Federal.

Senator MurkowskI. Not State?

Mr. LyoN. No, not State. At least this administration. No, it
isn’t, seriously. We want to come forward and examine the ways in
which the State might participate. The principle thing we’re saying
right now is we want the marketplace to look very carefully at
Alaska as a source, but we think there is a great deal that can be
done right now just in getting closer to the folks that are involved
in examining that question. But we certainly think it’s vital that it
be kept as a private sector initiative so that in fact what happens is
viable in the marketplace.

Senator MurkowsK!. From your testimony I gather that the offi-
cial State position is continuing support of the existing ANGTS
project and an open mind to any other project that would come
along that would market the States’ gas. Do you have any reason
to believe that there is enough gas for more than one project?

Mr. LyoN. It looks that way to us. The one thing that you can be
sure, my background is as a petroleum geologist. That’s how I got
to Alaska. I won’t bore you with anecdotes, a lot of folks want to
say serious things today, but it’s virtually certain that there is a
great deal more hydrocarbon resource available to us in the State
of Alaska so I would hate to see us back off from some opportunity
simply because we felt there was insufficient supply. We probably
have right now, except there is a specific disincentive to look for
natural gas, as I think you mentioned in your opening remarks.
Right now we want to find some way of inducing additional explo-
ration to see what more gas is available out there. I believe the of-
ficial figure is either 26 or 29 trillion feet in Prudhoe Bay itself
with perhaps as much as another 4 trillion reasonably shown now.
But the probably gas reserves in addition to that are certainly at
any number I've ever seen well over 50 trillion feet. Without trying
to pin that down, of course, that’s a resource, that’s not a pinned
down proven reserve.

Senator MURKOWSKI. And you've come to the conclusion that the
dilemma that’s facing the State’s ability to market its gas from the
_State on each issue, whether it be the ANGTS or another proposal,
18 that you're looking at high priced gas, competing with lower
Priced gas. It would appear that Canadian gas is substantially less,
at least less than gas that would come from the State of Alaska if,
In fact, the line were built. The Alaska gas would exceed the price
of Canadian gas. The same application is true, it appears the con-
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sideration of liquefying the gas and marketing in the Pacific rim,
you're competitively faced with cheaper gas. So why does it appear
it’s feasible if you draw a parallel conclusion that the ANGTS has
not progressed beyond where it is because of cheaper Canadian gas,
and you have the same set of circumstances about ready to apply
in the Pacific rim?

Mr. LyoN. Well, I think you mentioned that I would look at this
from my perspective of commissioner of commerce and economic
development. The perspective that the Sheffield administration has
tried to get in to the administration, and particularly into my area
of effort, is the marketplace. We try to look at what will the mar-
ketplace let you do?

Alaskans tend to think of themselves as living in this vast treas-
ure house of natural resources, and that there's a whole flow of
people out there knocking on the door ready to buy it, but ulti-
mately, of course, somebody has to pay the price to make the trans-
action to take place in order to get the resources developed.

Our point isn’t so much that we’ve been marketplace barred so
far, is that there's another marketplace where they’re currently
paying more money, let’s let them take a good, solid, positive look
and let them know we want them to look at it.

California eventually will be in the same boat. One thing that I
think there has not been too much of in the oil industry is an insti-
tutionalized memory. I tend to think, I guess we all have this prob-
lem, we tend to think today’s situation will continue on. Well, it
won't. God’s not creating any more oil and gas. There’s only so
much out there. And what we want to do is find out now, because
it will take 40 or 50 years just to carry forward with this one idea,
and we think we ought to let the marketplace determine where is
the best place to do that. And if that’s both projects, then fine.

Senator Murkowski. What if it’s neither project?

Mr. Lyon. Then we have to go back to square one.

Senator MurkowskIl. You go back and wait under the premise
that they don’t make gas and oil any more.

Mr. Lyon. It’s like buggy whips. What we’ll do I suppose is go
back and find out is there another market that can be induced.
What would have to be done? What’s the next step?

Senator MurkowskIl. Do you feel it’s appropriate and practical
for the administration in Washington to perhaps recognize that
Japan is America’s largest customer for Japanese goods and as a
consequence as the largest customer it should be able to dictate
certain terms which business as usual will incur in the sense of
saying: All right, we’ll continue to buy but you've got to buy some
energy from us, and it might cost you a little more but it’s the
price you pay for protection of not being run away. As you know,
there’s a climate in Congress that’s very actively involved with this
particular issue and it stems from other States, other than those
that make automobiles, that protection or feeling is a very real
one.

I don’t expect you to answer as a Federal official, but your per-
spective as a State official.

Mr. Lyon. I'll admit that you get a very special view living in
Alaska because No. 1 you feel close to Russia. It’s a natural part of
it. We’'re JAL’s largest overseas operating base is in Anchorage.
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You've got 1.5 million people a year in transit in Anchorage just to
gtand by the airport, so we feel close to them as a buyer. But I
think what we want to look at, this represents a fairly straight for-
ward way of dealing with debt balance of payments problems. We
have something Japan wants, they have the money to pay for it
and they're willing to do it. There is a difficulty with perception
that says the energy goes to Japan and in return is imported Japa-
nese manufactured goods. But it’s a two way street, and in Alaska
of course, we have exactly the opposite problem. We sell to Japan
well over 10 times as much every year as we buy from them.

Senator MurkowskKI. I have no further questions. I much appre-
ciate your testimony.

Mr. Lyon. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I'm greatful for
the opportunity to do this. The Sheffield administration does be-
lieve in the private sector and does believe in the marketplace. We
think that ought to determine the most legical development.

Senator MUrRkowskI. I might ask you one more question of a
leading nature. I'm wondering while this is somewhat removed
from the issue at hand, do you feel the energy issue can stand on
their own? And I'm talking about coal, gas, and oil, or if in reality
they’re linked? Do you feel there is a linkage to the communique
that was signed a few days ago and negotiated in the realities of
the concern that we have had here in Washington which Governor
Sheffield has followed very closely with regard to some type of an
amendment to the Export Administration Act that it might allow
the export of a relatively small amount of oil, 50,000 to 200,000 bar-
rels a day, in the U.S.-flag vessels with the restriction that the
President can withdraw that at any time. And I'm wondering do
you feel that gas is going to be more difficult or easier or will stand
on its own whether or not there’s any action taken on 0il?

Mr. Lyvon. I think there’s a linkage that’s as much economic
logic as anything else. The attractive part of crude oil is that the
system is in place to do it today. If the decision were made this
afternoon we could be shipping crude oil very shortly. If you make
the decision, yes, we’ll go forward with natural gas, you're talking
about a rather long-term prospect. Coal is somewhere in between
because you have, in Japan at least you have several years of con-
version to handle the kind of coal that’s likely to be available soon.
So they are independent, they will stand alone. But I think it’s a
human tendency once we get this trade established we tend to add
something else to it.

One of the reasons Japan is looking right now is because of the
existing LNG deal which goes back 15 years.

Senator MURKOWSKI. You're aware that it appears that the
Senate will not take up the Export Administration Act. It will have
technically expired and we probably won’t be taking it up again
until we come back in late January. As a consequence I understand
that the President has before him a communique from our Gover-
nor, and that communique specifically reflects the willingness of
the State of Alaska to make available the specific amount of oil
after taking care of in-kind needs for our State refiners, and is in
effect a formal request to export royalty oil. Do you have any
knowledge whether the President of the United States has acted
upon that request?
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Mr. Lyon. I don’t believe that he’s responded to the Governor’s
inquiry. We may have to send a followup letter and make sure it
doesn’t get lost somewhere. Because the interest is absolutely there
on the Japanese side and it seems very clear to us that this is such
a logical next step that we ought to take.

Senator MurkowsklI. I would assume it’s the official position of
the State of Alaska that they are offering a modest amount of oil
to export and are requesting in effect a waiver. I don’t know, and I
don’t suppose you do either, whether the President in effect has au-
thority to allow that oil to be exported under his emergency au-
thority now that the Export Administration Act has expired.

Mr. Lyon. We're hoping he’s at least thinking about whether he
can do it because he certainly spoke in strong terms with the
Prime Minister and the Prime Minister indicated to us that that
would be an item of discussion.

Senator MurkowskKI. I appreciate your voluntary remarks on the
subject. Thank you, Mr. Lyon.

Our next witness, it gives me a great deal of pleasure to present
to you Mr. Vernon Jones, president and chief executive officer,
Northwest Energy Co., accompanied by Mr. Darrell MacKay, and
Mr. Robert Pierce, chairman, Foothills Pipeline Co., Ltd., accompa-
nied by Mr. Bruce Simpson and Mr. Murray Peterson.

This represents Panel No. 3, and I think it’s fair to say, gentle-
men, this represents the ANGTS consortium, at least the spokes-
men for it. I welcome you and your associates to the panel and
would ask that you proceed. While we’ve had a great deal of asso-
ciation with Mr. Pierce of Foothills, I had the pleasure, Mr. Jones,
of meeting with you yesterday. I welcome you to the panel. And I
understand it’s been a few years since you've been up to look at
your project in Alaska. Now that you've associated yourself with
Northwest Energy Co., and speaking on behalf of many Alaskans,
we invite you again to journey up there and take a look at that
investment that’s been made on your project already.

With that, I would request that you proceed at your pleasure and
introduce your associates.

STATEMENT OF VERNON T. JONES, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXEC-
UTIVE OFFICER, NORTHWEST ENERGY CO., SALT LAKE CITY,
UTAH, ACCOMPANIED BY DARRELL MacKAY, NORTHWEST
ENERGY; HARRY LePAPE, PACIFIC INTERSTATE; CLARENCE
CONOLEY, PANHANDLE EASTERN; JACK ANGEL, SR., UNITED
GAS; GEORGE SEITTS, INTERNORTH; G. W. WOODS, TRANSCAN-
ADA; F. BUTTON, TRANSCANADA; WAYNE HODGE, TEXAS EAST-
ERN; MAX LEVY, COLUMBIA GAS, AND RALPH P. DEWEY, PA-
CIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

Mr. JonEgs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I have with me, on my right, Mr. Darrell MacKay, of Northwest
Energy. Since I'm the new guy on the block, I thought I might need
his assistance in answering some of the questions. We also have
with us today a number of the representatives of the partnership
who are here with me and I'd like to introduce them. Mr. Harry
LePape of Pacific Interstate; Mr. Clarence Conoley, of Panhandle
Eastern; Mr.——
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Senator MurkowsKI. I wonder, Mr. Jones, as you introduce those
gentlemen, would they stand up and be identified? It would help
me a bit.

Your first gentleman?

Mr. JoNEs. Mr. Harry LePape, of Pacific Interstate; Mr. Clarence
Conoley, of Panhandle Eastern; Mr. Jack Angel, of United Gas; Mr.
George Seitts, of Internorth; Mr. Woods, G. W. Woods, of Transcan-
ada; and Mr. Fred Button, of Transcanada; Mr. Wayne Hodge, of
Texas Eastern; Mr. Max Levy, of Columbia Gas; and Mr. Ralph
Dewey, of Pacific Gas & Electric.

Senator MUurkowskl. We welcome you gentlemen to the commit-
tee hearing, and ask you to proceed, Mr. Jones.

Mr. Jongs. Thank you.

Together with Northwest Energy Co., Exxon, Arco, and Sohio,
this group of sponsors has demonstrated its commitment to the
ANGTS project by an investment of nearly $700 million in the
Alaskan segment alone. If you add to this the $225 million invested
by the Canadian companies in planning for the Canadian segment
and the $2.2 billion cost of the 1,500 miles of prebuilt facilities that
we have already completed on both sides of the border, the total
investment in all elements of the system to date is about $3.1 bil-
lion, all of it with private funds, and without Government contribu-
tion.

We as a group made this enormous investment for a single
reason. We are convinced and remain convinced, that the proved
reserves of Alaskan gas will be urgently required in the lower 48
States to help alleviate predictable shortages in the years ahead.
This view is not limited to just the project sponsors. The ANGTS
project was established and implemented pursuant to Federal law
involving, I understand, six separate actions by Congress and condi-
tional certificates of public convenience and necessity from the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. Acting on these govern-
mental commitments, the sponsors constructed the prebuilt facili-
ties which were predicated upon, and whose ultimate viability de-
pends upon, the long-term flow of Alaskan gas. And our investment
in planning and engineering the remaining elements of the system
has reduced the time required for their construction to a practica-
ble minimum.

When the Alaskan gas flows, the prebuilt facilities will have
been substantially depreciated with a result of reduced cost to con-
sumers.

A major gas transportation system from the North Slope of
Alaska can be financed and constructed only on the basis of proved
reserves which Federal law requires must be formally reported to
the Government each year. Because of the high cost of building
and operating a pipeline system in Arctic and sub-Arctic condi-
tions, the magnitude of those reserves must be substantial in order
to permit construction of economical high capacity, long life system
which is required for marketing the gas. All of the Prudhoe Bay
area’s reserves of natural gas, now committed to the ANGTS
project, are necessary to permit the transportation costs which are
essentially fixed, to be spread over a high volume of gas for a long
period of time.
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With respect to additional crude reserves that may be found in
that area in the future, there has always been an expectation that |
they would be transported to market through the ANGTS. Indeed,
the possibility of an increase in the volume of gas to be transported
compared to the initial volume has been specifically taken into ac- °
count in the framework of Federal law underlying the project, in
our economic considerations, and in the planning of all segments of
the pipeline system. The movement of additional gas, when and if !
it becomes available, could significantly lower the unit cost to the °
U.S. consumer. ‘

An argument has been made by some that the U.S. should °
permit the export to foreign nations of Prudhoe Bay natural gas
reserves in the form of LNG. It has been argued that in the event
of a real need by the United States, the gas could be diverted to
meet urgent requirements in the lower 48 States.

Natural gas 1s different from oil in that transportation systems
for gas involve elements such as pipelines, compressor stations, and
LNG terminals, which are designed, financed and constructed in
fixed locations to meet specific continuing requirements with little
flexibility for change. Consequently gas is sold only on the basis of
binding long-term contracts which commit the reserves. If the pres-
ently identified North Slope natural gas reserves were committed
to export, the facilities to bring gas to the lower 48 would not be
constructed, and a major assured source of energy for the United
States lost.

Any idea, moreover, of building both the facilities to export any
significant portion of the estimated 28 trillion cubic feet of North
Slope reserves and a pipeline to the lower 48 is unrealistic. In addi-
tion to adding major additional design, regulatory and finance com-
plexities to an already complex project, it would saddle the U.S.
consumers with a substantially higher transportation cost for gas
received, and this would effectively preclude the marketing of gas
and financing of the pipeline. In addition, it is totally unrealistic to
expect equity sponsors or lenders to make speculative commit-
ments to a major transportation system based on undiscovered or
unproven reserves.

In short, it should be clearly recognized that there is sufficient
marketable natural gas on the North Slope of Alaska, that is,
proved reserves, for only a single project of a scale that would war-
rant construction of a large-diameter pipeline transportation
system.

We continue to believe that ANGTS is the superior method for
marketing the gas in terms of cost, completion date, environmental
protection, financability, and protection of U.S. consumer interests.
Any alternative transportation system that might be proposed
would not only have to duplicate the present sponsors’ financial
commitment and preparation, it would also have to resolve major
new environmental challenges and contend with a formidable ex-
isting legal and regulatory framework. It clearly would have to es-
tablish a new statutory basis because of the specific pipeline rout-
ing and commitment of gas to the ANGTS endorsed by the Con-
gress.

There is no reasonable likelihood that North Slope gas can be de-
livered to market earlier by means other than the ANGTS project.
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For this reas